
 

 
 
Notice of meeting of  
 

Effective Organisation Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 
To: Councillors Watt (Chair), Horton (Vice-Chair), D'Agorne, 

Firth, Boyce, Gunnell, Hyman and R Watson 
 

Date: Wednesday, 12 May 2010 
 

Time: 5.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York. 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or 

prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this 
agenda. 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 3 - 4) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 

Wednesday 28 April 2010. 
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Committee’s remit can do so. The deadline for 
registering is Tuesday 11 May 2010 at 5pm. 
  

4. "City of York Council Apprenticeships and 
Other Work Based Learning Opportunities" 
Scrutiny Review - Progress Report   

(Pages 5 - 72) 

 This report presents the Council’s draft Workforce Plan for 2010-
12 together with a presentation from the Head of Human 
Resources and Organisation Development. 
 
 



 
5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the  

Local Government Act 1972 
 

 
 
Democracy Officer: 
Name:  Laura Bootland 
Contact Details: 
Telephone – (01904) 552062 
Email – laura.bootland@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting Laura 
Bootland  
 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

 
 

 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (40 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Decision Session) agenda. The 
Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date and will 
set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 

necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

MEETING EFFECTIVE ORGANISATION OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE 28 APRIL 2010 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS WATT (CHAIR), HORTON (VICE-
CHAIR), BOYCE, GUNNELL, HYMAN AND 
R WATSON 

APOLOGIES COUNCILLORS FIRTH 

 
41. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
At this point in the meeting, Members were asked to declare and personal 
or prejudicial interests they may have in the business on the agenda. None 
were declared 
 
 

42. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the last meeting held on 28 April 

2010 be approved and signed by the Chair as a 
correct record subject to the following amendment: 

 
• That ‘looked after children’ be added to the 

terms of reference described at minute 38. 
 
 

43. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak under the 
Council’s Public Participation Scheme 
 
 

44. "CYC APPRENTICESHIPS AND OTHER WORK BASED LEARNING 
OPPORTUNITIES" SCRUTINY REVIEW - PROGRESS REPORT  
 
Members considered a report which presented a suggested timetable for 
the review of City of York Council Apprenticeships and Other Work Based 
Learning Opportunities. Members were asked to identify recommendations 
relating to the objectives agreed at the last meeting and to agree how to 
progress the review. 
 
Officers presented the report and discussions were had on the following 
issues: 

• The existence of York Training Centre in the City Strategy 
Directorate which has a contract with the Learning and Skills 
Council and claims funding for apprenticeships on behalf of the 
Council. 

Agenda Item 2Page 3



• Three quarters of York Training Centre’s business is from outside of 
the Council and it is questionable whether enough is being done 
within the Council to promote the service. 

• Government funding issues mean that many local authorities no 
longer fully participate in such schemes. 

• How the pay scale for apprentices at the Council is decided and 
whether it is directorate led or through  a centrally controlled 
scheme. 

• How a co-ordinated framework across the directorates would be 
monitored. 

 
Members felt that it would be beneficial for the Council’s first ‘Work Force 
Plan’ which is currently being drafted for the period 2010 to 2012 to be 
brought to them for consideration prior to it being presented to the 
Executive.  
 
 
RESOLVED:  (i)  That Members noted the contents of the report. 
 
 

(ii) That Members wished to be consulted on the draft 
Work Force plan prior to it being put before the 
Executive and receive a presentation at the next 
meeting. 

 
(iii) That the two additional meeting dates at paragraph 

7 be agreed. 
 
 

REASON: To progress this review in line with Scrutiny 
procedures and protocols. 

 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Watt, Chair 
[The meeting started at 5.00 pm and finished at 5.45 pm]. 

Page 4



 

  
 

   

 
Effective Organisation Overview & Scrutiny Committee 12 May 2010 

 
‘CYC Apprenticeships & Other Work Based Learning Opportunities’ 
Scrutiny Review – Progress Report 
 

Purpose of Report 
 

1. This report presents the Council’s draft Workforce Plan for 2010 – 2012 together 
with a presentation from the Head of Human Resources & Organisation 
Development.  This is being presented in support of the work of this Committee on 
their review of CYC Apprenticeships & Other Work Based Learning Opportunities.  
Members are asked to focus on the objective on ‘Diversity’ as this relates 
specifically to the work on this review.  Members are also asked to comment of the 
draft plan, so that their comments can be fed into the consultation process for this 
plan.  

Background 

2. At a meeting in February 2010, the Committee considered a topic registration form 
submitted by Cllr Gunnell which proposed carrying out a review of the existing 
arrangements for traineeships at the Council.  The Committee recognised that 
some of what Cllr Gunnell was proposing fell outside of the remit for this 
Committee and a decision was therefore taken to receive an officer report which 
focussed solely on the role of the Council as an employer, rather than its role as a 
provider of services to all young people across the city who are looking to receive 
work based training. 

3. That report was presented to a meeting of this Committee in March 2010, and it 
was agreed to carry out a review based on the following remit: 

Aim 
To identify improvements to the Council’s provision of apprenticeships and other 
work based training 

Objectives: 

• exploring the current arrangements  
 

• identifying any external funding opportunities,  particularly the targeting of 
specific vulnerable groups e.g. those with learning disabilities and NEETs 

 
• identifying a reporting structure to measure the effectiveness and outturn of 

apprenticeships and other work based training  

Agenda Item 4Page 5



Consultation  
 

4. Officers within Human Resources have been consulted on the information 
contained within this report. 

  

Information Gathered 
 

5. At a meeting on 28 April 2010, Members received information relating to the first 
two objectives of this review and as a result, requested further information on the 
Council’s Workforce Plan which is currently being drafted by Human Resources.  
A copy of the plan is shown at Appendix A. 

6. Members also requested a presentation on the plan from the Head of Human 
Resources & Organisational Development for this meeting and a copy of this is 
attached at Appendix B for information. 

Progressing the Review 
 

7. In regard to the third objective for this review, it was intended that at this meeting 
Members would receive details on a proposed mechanism for capturing 
information on the take-up of apprenticeships and other work based training 
opportunities across the council, together with a proposal for a reporting structure 
to measure the effectiveness and outturn of these. 

8. In order to produce these effectively, Human Resources need to consult with 
Directorates.  Due to the limited amount of time between the meeting on 28 April 
2010 and this meeting, it has not been possible to complete this work.  With that in 
mind, it is intended to present this information at the next meeting of this 
Committee on 24 May 2010.  

 
9. If the Committee still wish to complete this review by the end of this municipal 

year, this review will need to be concluded at the meeting on 24 May 2010.  In 
order to do so this Members will have to agree the recommendations they wish to 
put forward from this review at that meeting and agree to delegate the signing off 
of the final report to the Chair of this Committee.  
 
Options 
 

10. Members may choose to: 
  

• Provide specific questions they wish to have addressed in the report for the 
next meeting 

• Revise their decision to conclude this review by the end of this municipal year 
 

Implications 

11. Equalities - The diversity objective  in the Workforce Plan helps us to meet our 
Inclusive City objectives   

Page 6



12. Financial - Any changes to the current recruitment and training arrangements 
recommended as a result of this scrutiny review would need to be funded, as 
would any changes to the management arrangements.   

13. There are no known Legal or Other implications associated with the 
recommendation in this report. 

Corporate Priorities 
 

14. This review supports a number of the aims within the Council’s corporate strategy 
i.e. making York a ‘learning city’,’ inclusive city’ and ‘effective organisation’.   

 
Risk Management 
 

15. There are no known risks associated with the recommendation in this report. 
 

 Recommendations 

16. Members are asked to  

i) Note the contents of this report   

ii) Comment on the draft Workforce Plan 

iii) Agree to the method for concluding this review as outlined in paragraph 9 
above.  

Reason:  To progress this review in line with scrutiny procedures and protocols  

 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Melanie Carr 
Scrutiny Officer 
Scrutiny Services 
Tel No. 01904 552063 

Dawn Steel 
Democratic Services Manager 
 
Interim Report Approved ü Date 6 May 2010 

 
Specialist Implications Officer(s)   

Wards Affected:   All ü 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: None 
 
Annex A – Draft Workforce Plan 
Annex A1 – Workforce Planning Strategic Objectives 2010 - 2012 
Annex A2 – Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012: Action Plan 
Annex B – Copy of Presentation  

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex A 

 

More for York 
Delivering through 

People 

Workforce Plan 
2010 - 2012 

Page 9



CYC Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012 
 

 1

Contents 
 
 
 
 
Section 1 Foreword from Chief Executive   

and Leader of the Council 
Page 2 

   
Section 2 Background Page 3 
   
 What is workforce planning? Page 3 
   
 Why is workforce planning important? Page 4 
   
 Diagram of the drivers for and outcomes expected of 

workforce planning 
Page 5 

   
Section 3 Current drivers for the Workforce Plan Page 6 
   
Section 4 Our workforce today Page 7 
   
 Overview of current workforce Page 7 
   
 Overview of the local labour market Page 8 
   
 What our staff tell us about working for CYC Page 9 
   
Section 5 Our workforce tomorrow Page 10 
   
Section 6 Conclusions for workforce planning Page 12 
   
Section 7 Workforce Planning Strategic Objectives 2010-

2012 
Page 13 

   

Appendix 1 Full profile of current CYC workforce  

Appendix 2 Current initiatives supporting workforce planning  

Appendix 3 Workforce Planning best practice  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



CYC Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012 
 

 2

Foreword 
 
 
 
 
We are pleased to 
introduce City of York 
Council’s first Workforce 
Plan. 
 
There has never been a 
greater need for City of 
York Council to undertake 
Workforce Planning, nor 
has there ever been such 
a time when factors have 
come together to highlight 
the massive workforce 
implications of 
organisational, budgetary, 
political and societal 
changes, at both local and 
national level. 
 

City of York Council has 
an overriding priority to 
deliver more for York -
more efficient, convenient 
and personalised services 
to customers, often 
delivered in collaboration 
with partners, and to 
deliver those services in 
more efficient, integrated 
and effective ways.  This 
will mean significant 
changes for our workforce 
which delivers those 
services.  This Workforce 
Plan identifies the ‘council 
of tomorrow’ and what it is 
likely to mean for the 
workforce, and sets out 
actions to support and 
develop the workforce to 
deliver the changes 
required. 
 

There has been a lot of 
good work happening 
towards workforce 
planning in the 
organisation up until this 
point, and this Workforce 
Plan brings these strands 
together, highlights where 
improvement is needed 
and provides a clear and 
cohesive way forward. 
 
We acknowledge that 
there is much to do as we 
continually plan how we 
will recruit, deploy and 
develop our workforce of 
the future.  This 
Workforce Plan is a key 
first step in that journey. 
 
 

 

           
 
 
 
 
  
 
         
        

 

Kersten England 
Chief Executive 

 
 

Andrew Waller 
Council Leader 

 

Page 11



CYC Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012 
 

 3 

What is workforce planning? 
 
 
 
 
At its simplest, workforce 
planning means the 
council having the right 
people with the right skills 
in the right places at the 
right time to deliver the 
right services to our 
customers. It is about 
ensuring our workforce 
can deliver what we want 
it to do now, and planning 
so that it will be able to 
deliver what we want it to 
do in the future. 
Workforce planning is 
about anticipating future 
challenges and 
opportunities and planning 
so the workforce is ready 
for them.  Based on 
information about our 
current workforce and 
considering future trends, 
workforce planning 
enables us to identify the 
future people and skills 
we will need, and to work 
towards this now.   
 

Embedded into service 
planning 
Workforce planning is not 
an HR process; to be 
successful it must be 
embedded into service 
planning and become 
embedded in 
management practice - it 
is the business of the 
whole organisation to plan 
the workforce required to 
deliver services to 
customers to achieve the 
council’s stated 
objectives. 
 
Workforce Planning 
helps deliver the 
Corporate Strategy 
Our 2009-12 Corporate 
Strategy sets out what we 
are committed to 
achieving as a council by 
2012.  One of the eight 
themes of the Corporate 
Strategy is to be an 
‘Effective Organisation’,  

defined as being ’modern, 
with high  
standards in all we do, 
living up to our values, 
and being a great place to 
work’.  To achieve this will 
require a range of 
developments - in our 
behaviours and ways of 
working which helps build 
a new culture, in our skills 
and practices, in how and 
who we recruit and in how 
we work together to 
deliver services to our 
customers.  Few of these 
things are ‘quick fixes’ – 
workforce planning  
focuses on how we will 
support and develop our 
workforce to achieve 
these corporate objectives 
and build the type of 
culture outlined in the 
‘Effective Organisation’ 
objective. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



CYC Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012 
 

 4 

Why is workforce planning 
important to the council? 
 
 
Workforce planning will help the council: 

• Ensure the way we 
recruit, deploy and 
develop our workforce 
is linked to what we 
want to achieve as a 
council and in 
particular to deliver our 
Corporate Strategy 
commitment to being 
an Effective 
Organisation  

• deliver excellent 
customer service  

• support the delivery of 
the More for York 
programme 

•  identify the people, 
skills and 
competencies we will 
require in the future, 
and how we are going 
to get there from 
where we are now 

 

•  be a fair and diverse 
organisation, and meet 
equalities legislation 

•  meet internal and 
external drivers such 
as the Comprehensive 
Area Assessment 
(CAA), Use of 
Resources 
Assessment, e-
government, 
Modernisation agenda 
and the IDeA & LGE 
Pay and Workforce 
Strategy 

•  cope with peaks and 
troughs in supply and 
demand for different 
skills  

•  minimise skills gaps 
and staff shortages so 
that they will not have 
to be met through 
costly interim 
measures 

•  respond to changes in 
the external 
environment such as: 

demographic and 
social changes, such 
as an ageing 
population, which 
affect both demand for 
services and workforce 
supply. 

technological change 
leading to changes in 
service delivery, ways 
of working and skills 
required. 

the effects of 
unprecedented 
downward pressure on 
public spending  

and global and local 
economic downturn 

Page 13



CYC Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012 
 

 5

 

 

CORPORATE 
WORKFORCE 

PLAN 
Including specific 
objectives to achieve 
desired outcomes 

Individual learning needs identified 
through Performance & Development 

Reviews (PDRs) and Personal 
Development Plans (PDPs) 

o Analysis of current organisational 
context 

o CYC Corporate Strategy 
o More for York 
o Analysis of current workforce data 

Future Workforce 
Requirements  

o Directorate Plans/Service Plans with 
workforce planning considerations  

o Directorate programmes of work 
especially More for York workstreams 

A Modern Council 
o Embracing 

transformational change 
and a new culture 

o Readiness for the future 
o Working collaboratively 

with partners 

High standards in all we do 
o Talented and well-trained 

workforce 
o Recruiting and retaining 

the best people 
o Skills gaps minimised 
o Workforce that is excellent 

value for money 
 

A Great Place to Work 
o High levels of staff 

satisfaction 
o Staff well developed, 

rewarded and supported 

Living up to our Values 
o Workforce reflective of 

York’s communities  
o Workforce Planning 

embedded into 
organisation 

o Achieving our Corporate 
Strategy aims 

o Making a wider contribution 

Workforce Planning outcomes to 
support the 4 themes of the 
‘Effective Organisation’ 

Drivers for Workforce Planning 

Inspections 
o Use of Resources Assessment  
o Comprehensive Area 

Assessment 
o Comprehensive Performance 

Assessment Feedback to CYC 
2008 

Internal Drivers 
o More for York and Efficiency 

Savings 
o Customer & Transactional 

Services Project 
o Corporate Strategy 
o Equalities Strategy 
 
Government Drivers 
o Local Government Equalities 

Framework 
o IDeA & LGE Pay and 

Workforce Strategy 
o Local Govt Workforce Strategy 

External Environment 
o Cuts in Public Funding 
o Demographic changes 
o National skills gaps 
o New technologies 
 

External Best Practice 
o Investors in People 
o Customer Service Excellence 
o Audit Commission 
 

 

ACTIONS 
TO 
BRIDGE 
THE GAP 

Overview of drivers for and outcomes expected of Workforce Planning 

 B
et
te
r 
se
rv
ic
es
 fo

r 
cu
st
om

er
s 

P
age 14



CYC Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012 
 

 6 

Current drivers for the Workforce 
Plan  
 
This Workforce Plan is 
produced in the context of 
unprecedented ‘big 
picture’ changes (in 
society and 
demographics, in 
customer expectations, in 
national budgets, and in 
the political uncertainty in 
the run-up to a General 
Election) together with 
unprecedented ‘local 
picture’ changes (with the 
More for York programme, 
the organisational review 

and the move to a new 
civic HQ).  Such a 
challenging climate has 
fundamental implications 
for our workforce and how 
they are recruited, 
developed and deployed 
in the future.   
 
The downward pressure 
on public spending 
against the backdrop of 
global and local economic 
downturn has severe 
implications for council 

budgets and will demand 
both greater workforce 
efficiency and smarter 
ways of organising service 
delivery for customers.  
Much of this will be 
addressed through the 
More for York efficiency 
programme, out of which 
will fall many significant 
issues to be addressed 
through workforce 
planning. 

 

 
 
 
 

The starting point for workforce planning 
is to understand the workforce of today 
then anticipate the workforce required in 
the future and plan the actions that will 
help bridge the gap. 
 

Page 15



CYC Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012 
 

 7

 

Overview of our current workforce 
 
 
 
 
Key observations 
Including casual staff, the 
council employs over 
11,800 people. 
The figure excluding 
casual staff is 8093. 
6% of these are on a 
temporary contract, and 
8% are on a fixed term 
contract.   
 
At 7.8% for 08/09, annual 
turnover is lower than the 
local government average, 
and is forecast to decline 
to below 7% in 09/10. The 
average length of time 
working for CYC is 6.24 
years.   
 
59% of staff work part-
time, and 87% of these are 
women. 
 
In 08/09, the average 
number of days lost to 
sickness absence per full 
time employee was 9.08 
days. 
 
75% of employees live 
within the local authority 
region. 
 
Appendix 1 shows a 
detailed profile of our 
current workforce. 
 

Gender 
73% of the council’s 
workforce is female, which 
is similar to the picture in 
local government in 
general. Grades 1-9 are 
predominantly female 
(around 75%), and men 
and women are almost 
equally represented at 
grades 10-12.  Only 30% 
of chief officers are 
women. 
 
Black and minority 
ethnic (BME) people 
The council’s employment 
of BME people is less than 
half of the percentage of 
BME population in York.   

  
Disabled people 
The council’s employment 
of disabled people is very 
low - significantly less than 
both the local government 
average and the profile of 
disabled people in York. 
 
Age profile 
The council’s employment 
of young people (under 
25) is less than the local 
government average and 
significantly less than the 
profile of young people in 
York.  The majority of the 
workforce is aged 40-55 
which is common for local 
government.

Page 16



CYC Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012 
 

 8

Overview of the local labour 
market 
 

Local labour market Implications for workforce 
planning 

The population of York in 2009 is estimated 
to be over 195,000. The city is growing and 
has an aging demographic.   

Increased demand for many services 
especially adult social care will require 
new ways of delivering services and new 
skills to deliver more personalised 
choice. 

Due to the economic downturn, York’s 
unemployment level has risen.  However, it 
is still lower than the national average.  In 
October 2009, there were just over 3,800 
residents receiving job seekers allowance.  
Particularly affected are those aged 
between 16 and 24. 

 

Supply of applicants may exceed 
demand during the economic downturn 
so less immediate difficulty in attracting 
staff to work for the council, and a 
potential to recruit better candidates due 
to increased competition.  It is important 
not to be complacent however and we 
must equip ourselves to be responsive to 
an upturn, and take responsibility as a 
council and the largest employer in the 
city to look to increase the likelihood of 
unemployed residents finding work.  

Skills deficiencies reported by employers in 
York are as follows:  

60% report poor customer handling skills; 
53% report poor team working skills; 

50% report poor technical skills;  

49% report poor oral communication skills; 
47% report poor problem solving skills. 

Implications for ability to recruit staff with 
the right skills especially in customer 
service and team working.  Need to 
provide training in these vital skills. 

In a survey carried out in 2007, the main 
barriers to learning and work in York were 
identified to be: ‘disability’ (18%); ‘English 
as a second language’ (likely to increase 
with York’s changing demographic) (11%); 
‘no relevant qualifications’ (11%); ‘Returning 
to Work’ (9%); ‘Loss of job / facing 
redundancy’ (likely to have increased) (9%) 
and ‘Underemployed graduate’ (likely to 
have increased) (5%). 

Taking action to remove these barriers as 
part of our recruitment practices will 
enable us to recruit from a wider pool of 
people and build a more inclusive 
workforce. 

York has a strong track record in learning 
and skills provision in schools, and further 
and higher education. It is home to two 
world-class universities.  The University of 
York is currently expanding which will 
increase the number of students in the City. 

We can work more closely with these 
institutions to attract talent, especially 
young people who are under-represented 
in our workforce. 

Page 17



CYC Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012 
 

 9

What our staff tell us about 
working for CYC 
 
Since 2001 the council has carried out an 18-monthly Staff Survey , which enables us to 
understand staff views and how they have changed over time.  The 2009 response rate 
was 37%, so we must bear in mind that we have not heard from 63% of staff.  However, 
37% is considered a reasonable response rate for analysis. 
 

Message from 2009 Staff Survey Implications for workforce 
planning 

Staff satisfaction  
Staff satisfaction of rewards other than pay 
has fallen significantly from 64% in 2005 to 
36% in 2009. 
 
 
Staff feeling well enough informed has 
dropped from 81% in the 2007 survey to 
75% in 2009. 
 
Big increase in staff awareness of council 
priorities (from 43% in 2007 to 70% in 
2009. 

 
Need to keep staff motivated and 
informed especially through the 
uncertainties of the transformational 
change programme. 
 
Need to improve communication with 
staff. 
 
 
Learn the lessons from recent 
communications around corporate 
priorities and apply to future initiatives 
and the More for York programme. 
 

Performance & Development Reviews 
Only 64% of survey respondents had a 
PDR in the last 12 months. 
 
Increase from 46%to 54% in those who 
think their PDR improved their work. 
 
Drop from 91% in 2007 to 88% who had 
roles/objectives identified for next 12 
months at PDR. 
 

 
Need to ensure all staff have an annual 
PDR. 
 
Build on this, and improve the quality of 
PDRs to further improve the work of staff. 
 
Need to ensure objective setting is key in 
all PDRs. 
 
 

Management & Leadership 
What is most important to staff is: 
Having responsibility 
Being encouraged and supported in their 
learning and development. 
 
Only 44% of survey respondents agree 
senior managers provide effective 
leadership 
 

 
Need to build a culture of empowering 
staff and encouraging and supporting 
their development. 
 
 
Need to build leadership capability and 
effectiveness. 
 

Equality 
Only 19% consider equality to be relevant 
to their job. 

 
Need to significantly improve staff’s 
understanding of diversity and equality. 

Page 18



CYC Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012 
 

 10

Our workforce tomorrow 
 
 
 
 
The council is committed 
to becoming an excellent 
authority that is ambitious, 
focussed, and confident 
with an inclusive and high 
performing workforce.  
Services in the future will 
be delivered by those best 
placed to deliver them, 
which may or may not be 
the council, and will 
increasingly be in 
partnership across historic 
service and budgetary 
boundaries to realise the 
emerging concept of ‘total 
place’.  The council will 
increasingly have 
responsibility for 
workforces other than its 
own, as commissioner of 
services including from 3rd 
sector partners. 
 
Services will be shaped 
and organised around the 
needs of customers rather 
than by traditional council 
organisational structures, 
and business processes 
will be transformed to 
ensure they are fully 
customer facing.  These 
transformations will be  

largely driven by the More  
for York programme and 
the move to the new civic 
HQ in 2012. 
Further efficiencies and 
modernity will be achieved 
by increased use of 
technology for all including 
more mobile workers using 
hand-held electronic 
devices, more web-based 
contact with customers, e-
trading and customers 
using text messages to 
contact the council. 
The ageing population will 
place increased demands 
on many services, 
especially adult social care 
provision and will demand 
more personalisation and 
choice in how their 
increased needs are met. 
All customers are likely to 
expect more consultation 
and engagement with the 
council and its decisions. 
 
 

Workforce implications 
To achieve these 
transformations the 
workforce of tomorrow 
must be suitably skilled 
and flexible and work in 
ways that builds a new 
culture to support the 
Effective Organisaiton 
theme of the Corporate 
Strategy – a culture of 
modernity, with high 
standards in everything we 
do, where we live up to the 
council’s values and shape 
a council that is a great 
place to work. 
Staff will require significant 
support and development 
to equip them to operate 
effectively in the ‘council of 
tomorrow’, as will elected 
members as they become 
community leaders 
working with partners on 
an area basis. 
 
Workforce planning 
considerations have been 
integrated into the service 
planning process from 
2010.

 
Anticipated changes Implications for workforce planning 

Consistent downward pressure on 
budgets and drive for greater efficiency. 

Need for greater control on staffing costs 
(less overtime, less agency staff) by robust 
resourcing strategy.   Cultural change for all 
staff to work in most efficient and effective 
ways. 

Need for robust procurement strategy. 

Upskilling managers in financial 
management, commissioning services and 
managing services not directly provided by 

Page 19



CYC Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012 
 

 11

the council. 

Need for a flexible workforce able to cope 
with change and uncertainty. 

 

Economic downturn Increased demand on benefits service and 
increased requirement for workforce to have 
skills in dealing with debt issues.

Page 20



CYC Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012 
 

 12

 

Anticipated changes Implications for workforce planning 

An ageing population with greater 
demand for many services, especially 
adult social care, and increased 
expectations of personalised choice 
from all customers. 

 

An ageing workforce is likely to need 
reskilling and may mean less opportunity 
for young people to enter the workforce. 

We need to develop new ways of delivering 
services, equipping staff with new skills, and 
developing new working patterns to meet 
customers’ changing expectations. 

We need to keep the skills of all staff 
updated and relevant to the changing culture. 

We must take care to offer opportunities for 
employment and training to young people. 

Emerging concept of ‘total place’ 
requiring future collaborative working 
with partners across current budgetary, 
cultural and organisational boundaries to 
deliver improved services at the best 
possible value for money. 

We must work more closely with partners to 
plan and develop a joint workforce  to deliver 
services across traditional boundaries. 

 

The council’s biggest ever programme of 
change, the More for York programme 
requiring fundamental transformation of 
the council’s culture and ways of 
working, consolidating support services 
and redefining the concept of the internal 
customer, empowering front-line staff, 
increased use of mobile working and 
new technology, driving down staffing 
costs and reconfiguring current council 
functions.   

Preparations for the move into a new 
civic headquarters requiring new ways 
of working and generic and empowered 
front line staff. 

We must understand the skills of our current 
workforce and help them develop the 
competencies and behaviours needed for the 
future including the behaviours needed to 
lead change and shape a new customer-
centric and flexible organisational culture. 

Increased use of technology across the 
council. 

 

Significant training needs for all, especially 
frontline staff to develop greater confidence 
and skill in using technology including hand-
held devices in many services. 

Support services will be consolidated to 
drive out duplication and inefficiencies.   

Changing culture of working with internal 
customers.  Need for professional and 
technical upskilling of staff in newly 
consolidated services. 

Services organised around cross-cutting 
needs of customers and in partnership 
with other providers. 

Significant changes in culture, working 
practices and cross-skilling required to 
deliver services with partners. 

Customers demand more engagement 
and consultation with service providers. 

Implications for member and officer 
development and for new ways of working 
with customers. 

Page 21



CYC Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012 
 

 13

Conclusions for Workforce 
Planning 
 
 
Although this is the first 
corporate Workforce Plan 
for City of York Council 
there is much work already 
underway across the 
organisation which 
contributes to the learning, 
development, well-being 
and modernisation of our 
current workforce (see 
appendix 2).  This work 
must be taken account of 
and the strands pulled 
together to help directly 
contribute to the objectives 
of the Workforce Plan. 
 
Links with other 
workforce strategies in 
the council 
This Workforce Plan takes 
an overarching strategic 
view of the workforce 
planning needs of the 
whole council.  However, 
service-focussed 
workforce plans have been 
developed for the diverse 
range of providers in the 
children and young 
people’s workforce, and in 

response to the ‘Working 
to Put People First’ 
agenda in adult social 
care.  Both these service-
focussed workforce plans 
raise key issues around 
skills development, job 
design and working 
patterns  and share many 
common themes with the 
corporate Workforce Plan.  
 
A key part of service 
planning 
Workforce planning must 
become a key element of 
our directorate and service 
planning.  Guidance has 
been developed to help 
managers consider current 
and future staff 
implications, skills 
requirements, recruitment 
difficulties and 
development opportunities 
in their service planning so 
that workforce planning is 
considered at a service 
level.  
 
Measuring Success 

The Workforce Plan takes 
a long-term view, initially 
until 2012, but must 
remain flexible to reflect 
changing priorities.  The 
objectives outlined within 
this document will be the 
driving force for the longer 
term, and progress in the 
action plan will be 
reviewed regularly to make 
sure it continues to reflect 
current needs. 
 
The Action Plan shows 
how each of the objectives 
of the Workforce Plan will 
be measured.  A range of 
high-level measures will 
also indicate progress 
including feedback from 
the Audit Commission’s 
Use of Resources 
Assessment and 
Comprehensive Area 
Assessment, feedback 
from the staff survey and 
progress against the 
Equalities Framework. 

 
 
 

Page 22



CYC Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012 
 

 14

Workforce Planning Strategic 
Objectives 2010 - 2012 
 
 
Taking into account the 
current context of City of 
York Council and the key 
drivers for change, the 
following workforce 
objectives have been 
identified for the period 
2010- 2012.  The detailed 
action plan which follows 
outlines the specific 
actions in year one of the 
Workforce Plan. 
 

Objective One:  
Transformation and 
culture change 
 
Support staff through the 
More for York 
transformation programme 
with timely and open 
communications, a 
programme of skills 
development to build 
leadership and change- 
management capacity, 
support for all staff and 
elected members to 
embrace change and a 
suite of ‘good employer’ 
support to all. 
 
1a. Engage with staff 
through the ‘More for York’ 
transformational change 
programme with timely, 
accurate and open 
communications. 
 
1b. Support and develop 
managers to lead change 
and transformation. 
 
1c. Support and develop 
elected members to lead 
change and 
transformation. 
 
1d. Develop a suite of 
‘good employer’ support 
for all staff affected by the 
More for York programme 
or budget cuts. 
 
1e. Work towards a more 
ambitious, inclusive, 

focussed and collaborative 
organisational culture. 
 
Objective Two:  
Efficiency 
 
Develop a culture of 
efficiency and 
effectiveness in response 
to tight budgetary 
pressures and the need to 
deliver more with less. 
 
2a. Control staffing costs 
through a robust 
resourcing strategy. 
 
2b. Support and develop 
managers to manage and 
control tight budgets. 
 
2c. Support and develop 
all staff to work in the most 
efficient and effective ways 
and seek improved ways 
of delivering services.  
 
2d.  Ensure all HR 
procedures and functions 
are as efficient and 
effective as possible. 
 
 

Page 23



CYC Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012 
 

 15

 
Objective Three:  
Customers 
 
Help shape a more 
customer-centric culture 
by developing the skills of 
staff to deliver timely, 
efficient and excellent 
services configured 
around the needs and 
choices in customers’ 
lives. Develop elected 
members as community 
leaders.  Respond to the 
increased demand from 
customers for more 
engagement and 
consultation with service 
providers. 
 
3a. Become a more 
customer-focussed 
organisation with an 
established single 
customer services 
structure. 
 
3b. Review Members 
‘Portal’. 
 
3c. Develop and 
implement customer 
service standards and 
behaviours across the 
council. 
 
3d.  Develop customer 
service staff skills in 
engaging and consulting 
with customers, 
stakeholders and partners. 
 
3e.  Work in partnership 
with other organisations to 
deliver joined up and 
effective customer 
services (see 5a.) 
 

 
Objective 4:  
Diversity 
 
Help build an inclusive  
culture in which all are 
treated with dignity and 
respect as described in the 
Fairness & Inclusion 
Strategy.  
 
4a. Remove barriers to 
enable our employment 
opportunities to be 
accessible to all. 
 
4b. Increase the number of 
disabled people and BME 
people at all levels in CYC, 
and female Chief Officers. 
 
4c. Increase the number of 
young people (under 25) 
working for the council. 
 
4d. Ensure our 
organisational culture and 
practices are fair and 
inclusive and support the 
retention of a diverse 
workforce. 
 
4e. Develop the skills of 
staff to better understand 
diversity issues 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Objective 5:  
Partnerships 
 
5a. Develop the skills of 
staff and elected members 
to work with public sector 
partners, private sector 
partners and voluntary & 
community sector/3rd 
sector partners, across 
traditional boundaries to 
deliver customer focussed 
services. 
 
5b. Work collaboratively 
with partners to identify 
future workforce 
requirements and respond 
to changing patterns of 
service delivery. 

Page 24



 

 16 

 
 
 
 Appendix 1: City of York Council Workforce Profile as at November 2009 
 
Overall Headcount inc casual staff – 11937   
Full Time Employee equivalent - 5385.44 
08/09 turnover – 7.8% 
09/10 estimated turnover* - 6.6% 

Average time working for CYC – 6.24 years 
Employees on a temporary contract – 6% 
Employees on a fixed term contract –  8% 
Employees seconded – 1%

 

Total ex 
casuals 

 
Full 
time 

Part 
time 

Grade 

 
York 
working 
age 
profile* 

Local 
government 
employees 

National 
economy 

Casual 
staff 1-3 4-6 7-9 10-12 Chief 

Officer 

Overall 8093 
 
3844 

 

41.3% 
(3345) 

58.7% 
(4748) 

18% 
(1457) 

35.6% 
(2879) 

17.1% 
(1385) 

4.2% 
(341) 

0.3% 
(26) 

Of which the following percentage are:   

Male 26.6% 
(2156) 

22.2% 
(853) 

46% 
(1538) 

13% 
(618) 

16.5% 
(240) 

23.6% 
(679) 

29.5% 
(409) 

49% 
(167) 

69.2% 
(18) 

 

51% 25% 53% 

Female 73.4% 
(5937) 

77.8% 
(2991) 

54% 
(1807) 

87% 
(4130) 

83.5% 
(1217) 

76.4% 
(2200) 

70.5% 
(976) 

51% 
(174) 

30.8% 
(8) 49% 75% 47% 

Disabled 1.8% 
(137) 

     1.3% 
       (39) 

2.2% 
(70) 

1.5% 
(67) 

1.7% 
(23) 

1.4% 
(38) 

1.5% 
(20) 2.7% (9) 0% 17% 15% 13%* 

BME 3.1% 
(253)  

4.1% 
(153) 

2.9% 
(96) 

3.3% 
(157) 

3.8% 
(55) 

2.6% 
(75) 

4.1% 
(57) 

2.9% 
(10) 7.7% (2)  9% 7% 9% 

16-24 4.2% 
(337) 

14.5% 
556 

4.8% 
(161) 

3.7% 
(176) 

6.8% 
(99) 

4.7% 
(134) 2% (28) 0% 0% 15% 7% 15% 

25-39 30.2% 
(2445) 

26.8% 
1032 

36.4% 
(1217) 

25.9% 
(1228) 

22.2% 
(324) 

25.2% 
(726) 

30.4% 
(421) 

25.5% 
(87) 0% 34% 32% 35% 

40-55 48.8% 
(3947) 

40.1% 
1541 

45.2% 
(1512) 

72.8% 
(2435)  

49.6% 
(723) 

52.5% 
(1512) 

49% 
(678) 

60.1% 
(205) 

88% 
(23) 32% 43% 35% 

P
age 25



 

 17 

56-60 10.6% 
(859) 

7.6% 
291 

10.2% 
(341) 

10.9% 
(518) 

10.8% 
(158) 

10.2% 
(295) 

12% 
(166) 

13.2% 
(45) 

11.5% 
(3) 10% 11% 8% 

60+ 6.2% 
(505) 

11.0% 
424 

3.4% 
(114) 

8.2% 
(391) 

10.5% 
(153) 

7.4% 
(212) 

6.6% 
(92) 1.2% (4) 0% 8% 7% 7% 

* See page 34 for explanations of how figures were worked out. 

P
age 26



 

 18 

Chief Executives – Workforce Profile 
 
Headcount - 205 
Full Time Employee equivalent - 179.28 
08/09 Turnover – 12.2% 
09/10 Estimated Turnover* – 11.4%  
 

Total Full 
time 

Part 
time 

Grade 

 

CYC 
employees 

York 
working 
age 
profile* 

Local 
government 
employees 

National 
economy 

1-3 4-6 7-9 10-12 Chief 
Officer 

Overall 205 72.2% 
(148) 

27.8% 
(57) 15 57 71 56 2 

Of which the following percentage are: 

Male 35.1% 
(72) 

46% 
(68) 7%    (4) 33.3% 

(5) 
21.1% 
(12) 

39.4% 
(28) 

44.6% 
(25) 50%   (1) 27% 51% 25% 53% 

Female 64.9% 
(133) 

39% 
(80) 

93% 
(53) 

66.7% 
(10) 

78.9% 
(45) 

60.1% 
(43) 

55.4% 
(31) 50%   (1) 73% 49% 75% 47% 

Disabled 2.1% (4) 1.4% (2) 3.8% (2) 25%   
(2) 

2%    
(1) 0% 1.8% 

(1) 0% 2% 17% 15% 13%* 

BME 3.9% (8) 3.4% (5) 5.3% (3) 0% 7%    
(4) 

2.8% 
(2) 

3.6% 
(2) 0% 3% 9% 7% 9% 

16-24 2.4% (5) 3.4% (5) 0% 6.7% 
(1) 

3.5% 
(2) 

1.4% 
(1) 0% 0% 4% 15% 7% 15% 

25-39 30.2% 
(62) 

28.4% 
(42) 

35.1% 
(20) 

33.3% 
(5) 

33.3% 
(19) 

28.2% 
(20) 

28.6% 
(16) 0% 30% 34% 32% 35% 

40-55 54.1% 
(111) 

54.1% 
(80) 

54.4% 
(31) 

40%  
(6) 

52.6% 
(30) 

53.5% 
(38) 

60.7% 
(34) 100% (2) 49% 32% 43% 35% 

56-60 9.8% 
(20) 

11.5% 
(17) 5.3% (3) 13.3% 

(2) 7%  (4) 12.7% 
(9) 

8.9% 
(5) 0% 11% 10% 11% 8% 

60+ 3.4% (7) 2.7% (4) 5.3% (3) 6.7% 
(1) 

3.5% 
(2) 

4.2% 
(3) 

1.8% 
(1) 0% 6% 8% 7% 7% 

* See page 34 for explanations of how figures were worked out. 

P
age 27



 

 19 

Neighbourhood Services – Workforce Profile 
 
Headcount - 991 
Full Time Employee equivalent - 737.28 
08/09 Turnover – 10.7% 
09/10 Estimated Turnover* – 8.2% 
 

Total Full 
time 

Part 
time 

Grade 

 

CYC 
employees 

York 
working 
age 
profile* 

Local 
government 
employees 

National 
economy 

1-3 4-6 7-9 10-12 Chief Officer 

Overall 991 55.8% 
(553) 

44.2% 
(438) 326 398 94 51 4 

Of which the following percentage are: 

Male 66.7% 
(611) 

84.4% 
(467) 

32.9% 
(144) 

35.3% 
(115) 

73.1% 
(291) 

56 
(59.6%) 

54.9% 
(28) 

75% 
(3) 27% 51% 25% 53% 

Female 38.3% 
(380) 

16.6% 
(86) 

67.1% 
(294) 

64.7% 
(211) 

26.9% 
(107) 

38 
(40.4%) 

45.1% 
(23) 

25% 
(1) 73% 49% 75% 47% 

Disabled 
0.9% 
(9) 

1.3% 
(7) 

0.5% 
(2) 

1.2% 
(4) 

0.8% 
(3) 

2.1% 
(2) 0% 0% 2% 17% 15% 13%* 

BME 3.4% 
(34) 

2% 
(11) 

5.3% 
(23) 

7.7% 
(25) 

1.8% 
(7) 

1.1% 
(1) 0% 0% 3% 9% 7% 9% 

16-24 5.3% 
(53) 

5.8% 
(32) 

4.8% 
(21) 

7.7% 
(25) 

4.5% 
(18) 

1.1% 
(1) 0% 0% 4% 15% 7% 15% 

25-39 24.7% 
(245) 

27.8% 
(154) 

20.8% 
(91) 

20.9% 
(68) 

26.1% 
(104) 

31.9% 
(30) 

37.3% 
(19) 0% 30% 34% 32% 35% 

40-55 49.6% 
(492) 

53.2% 
(294) 

45.2% 
(198) 

44.8% 
(146) 

51.8% 
(206) 

52.1% 
(49) 

52.9% 
(27) 

75% 
(3) 49% 32% 43% 35% 

56-60 10.3% 
(102) 

8.7% 
(48) 

12.3% 
(54) 

11.3% 
(37) 

8.5% 
(34) 

10.6% 
(10) 

9.8% 
(5) 

25% 
(1) 11% 10% 11% 8% 

60+ 10.1% 
(99) 

4.5% 
(25) 

16.9% 
(74) 

15.3% 
(50) 

9% 
(36) 

4.3% 
(4) 0% 0% 6% 8% 7% 7% 

 
* See page 34 for explanations of how figures were worked out. 

P
age 28



 

 20 

City Strategy – Workforce Profile 
 
Headcount - 317 
Full Time Employee equivalent - 270.42 
08/09 Turnover – 7.1% 
09/10 Estimated Turnover – 3.2% 
 

Total Full 
time 

Part 
time 

Grade 

 

CYC 
employees 

York 
working 
age 
profile* 

Local 
government 
employees 

National 
economy 

1-3 4-6 7-9 10-12 Chief Officer 

Overall 317 
69.4% 
(220) 

30.6% 
(97) 

61 89 107 55 4 

Of which the following percentage are: 

Male 
46.7% 
(148) 

55.5% 
(122) 

26.8% 
(26) 

31.1% 
(19) 

29.2% 
(26) 

56.1% 
(60) 

70.9% 
(39)  

100% 
(4) 27% 51% 25% 53% 

Female 
53.3% 
(169) 

44.5% 
(98) 

73.2% 
(71) 

68.9% 
(42) 

70.8% 
(63) 

43.9% 
(47) 

29.1% 
(16) 0% 73% 49% 75% 47% 

Disabled 4.1% 
(13) 

1.8% 
(4) 

9.4% 
(9) 

11.7% 
(7) 

3.4% 
(3) 

1.9% 
(2) 

1.8% 
(1) 0% 2% 17% 15% 13%* 

BME 1.3% 
(4) 

0.5% 
(1) 

3.1% 
(3) 

1.6% 
(1) 

2.2% 
(2) 

0.9% 
(1) 0% 0% 3% 9% 7% 9% 

16-24 5% 
(16) 

5.9% 
(13) 

3.1% 
(3) 

14.8% 
(9) 

7.9% 
(7) 0% 0% 0% 4% 15% 7% 15% 

25-39 
30.3% 
(96) 

32.3% 
(71) 

25.8 
(25) 

14.8% 
(9) 

33.7% 
(30) 

40.2% 
(43) 

23.6% 
(13) 0% 30% 34% 32% 35% 

40-55 
44.8% 
(142) 

47.3% 
(104) 

39.2% 
(38)  

29.5% 
(18) 

43.8% 
(39) 

43.9% 
(47) 

65.5% 
(36) 50% (2) 49% 32% 43% 35% 

56-60 
11% 
(35) 

10.5% 
(23) 

12.4% 
(12) 

16.4% 
(10) 

4.5% 
(4) 

12.1% 
(13) 

10.9% 
(6) 50% (2) 11% 10% 11% 8% 

60+ 
8.8% 
(28)  

4.1% 
(9) 

19.6% 
(19) 

24.6% 
(15) 

10.1% 
(9) 

3.7% 
(4) 0% 0% 6% 8% 7% 7% 

* See page 34 for explanations of how figures were worked out. 

P
age 29



 

 21 

Resources – Workforce Profile 
 
Headcount - 278 
Full Time Employee equivalent - 251.09 
08/09 Turnover – 7.3% 
09/10 Estimated Turnover – 8% 
 

Total Full 
time 

Part 
time 

Grade 

 

CYC 
employees 

York 
working 
age 
profile* 

Local 
government 
employees 

National 
economy 

1-3 4-6 7-9 10-12 Chief 
Officer 

Overall 278 78.4% 
(218) 

21.6% 
(60) 30 121 85 37 5 

Of which the following percentage are: 

Male 41.7% 
(116) 

49.5% 
(108) 

13.3% 
(8) 

40% 
(12) 

26.4% 
(32) 

56.5% 
(48) 

59.5% 
(22) 

40% 
(2) 27% 51% 25% 53% 

Female 58.3% 
(162) 

50.5% 
(110) 

86.7% 
(52) 

60% 
(18) 

74% 
(89) 

43.5% 
(37) 

40.5% 
(15) 

60% 
(3) 73% 49% 75% 47% 

Disabled 3.2% 
(9) 

3.2% 
(7) 

3.3% 
(2) 

6.7% 
(2) 

2.5% 
(3) 

2.4% 
(2) 

5.4% 
(2) 

0.0% 
(0) 2% 17% 15% 13%* 

BME 5.4% 
(15) 

6% 
(13) 

3.3% 
(2) 

3.3% 
(1) 

5.8% 
(7) 

3.5% 
(3) 

8.1% 
(3) 

20% 
(1) 3% 9% 7% 9% 

16-24 4% 
(11) 

4.6% 
(10) 

1.7% 
(1) 

20% 
(6) 

4.1% 
(5) 

0.0% 
(0) 

0.0% 
(0) 

0.0% 
(0) 4% 15% 7% 15% 

25-39 35.3% 
(98) 

39% 
(85) 

21.7% 
(13) 

20% 
(6) 

35.5% 
(43) 

42.4% 
(36) 

35.1% 
(13) 

0.0% 
(0) 30% 34% 32% 35% 

40-55 42.4% 
(118) 

40.8% 
(89) 

48.3% 
(29) 

40% 
(12) 

34.7% 
(42) 

44.7% 
(38) 

56.8% 
(21) 

 100% 
(5) 49% 32% 43% 35% 

56-60 11.5% 
(32) 

11.9% 
(26) 

10% 
(6) 

10% 
(3) 

15.7% 
(19) 

8.2% 
(7) 

8.1% 
(3) 

0.0% 
(0) 11% 10% 11% 8% 

60+ 6.8% 
(19) 

3.7% 
(8) 

18.3% 
(11) 

10% 
(3) 

9.9% 
(12) 

4.7% 
(4) 

0.0% 
(0) 

0.0% 
(0) 6% 8% 7% 7% 

 

* See page 34 for explanations of how figures were worked out. 

P
age 30



 

 22 

Learning, Culture and Children’s Services (excluding Schools)  
 
Headcount - 1403 
Full Time Employee equivalent – 810.4 
08/09 Turnover – 7% 
09/10 Estimated Turnover – 6.2% 
 

Total Full 
time 

Part 
time 

Grade 

 

CYC 
employees 

York 
working 
age 
profile* 

Local 
government 
employees 

National 
economy 

1-3 4-6 7-9 10-12 Chief Officer 

Overall 1403 36.1% 
(507) 

63.9% 
(896) 117 319 552 76 6 

Of which the following percentage are: 

Male 22.4% 
(314) 

32.7% 
(166) 

16.5% 
(148) 

13.7% 
(16) 

16.9% 
(54) 

22.6% 
(125) 

34.2% 
(26) 

83.3% 
(5) 27% 51% 25% 53% 

Female 77.6% 
(1089) 

67.3% 
(341) 

83.5% 
(748) 

86.3% 
(101) 

83.1% 
(265) 

77.4% 
(427) 

65.8% 
(50) 

16.7% 
(1) 73% 49% 75% 47% 

Disabled 2.7% 
(35) 

2.5% 
(12) 

2.8% 
(23) 

4.6% 
(5) 

3.1% 
(9) 

1.6% 
(8) 

2.7% 
(2) 0% 2% 17% 15% 13%* 

BME 4.3% 
(60) 

3.2% 
(16) 

4.9% 
(44) 

3.4% 
(4) 

3.4% 
(11) 

5.8% 
(32) 

0.5% 
(3) 

16.7% 
(1) 3% 9% 7% 9% 

16-24 5.3% 
(74) 

5.3% 
(74) 

5.2% 
(47) 

9.4% 
(11) 

7.5% 
(24) 

4.2% 
(23) 0% 0% 4% 15% 7% 15% 

25-39 29.9% 
(419) 

32.1% 
(163) 

28.6% 
(256) 

27.4% 
(32) 

33.9% 
(108) 

30.6% 
(169) 

14.5% 
(11) 0% 30% 34% 32% 35% 

40-55 46.3% 
(650) 

47.1% 
(59) 

45.9% 
(411) 

39.3% 
(46) 

44.8% 
(143) 

45.5% 
(251) 

63.2% 
(48) 

100% 
(6) 49% 32% 43% 35% 

56-60 11.7% 
(164) 

3.7% 
(19) 

11.7% 
(105) 

15.4% 
(18) 

10.3% 
(33) 

10.7% 
(59) 

19.7% 
(15) 0% 11% 10% 11% 8% 

60+ 6.8% 
(96) 

3.7% 
(19) 

8.6% 
(77) 

8.5% 
(10) 

3.4% 
(11) 

9.0% 
(50) 

1.3% 
(2) 0% 6% 8% 7% 7% 

 

* See page 34 for explanations of how figures were worked out. 

P
age 31



 

 23 

Schools 
 
Headcount - 3726 
Full Time Employee equivalent – 2273.6 
 

Total Full 
time 

Part 
time 

Grade 

 

CYC 
employees 

York 
working 
age 
profile* 

Local 
government 
employees 

National 
economy 

1-3 4-6 7-9 10-12 Chief Officer 

Overall 3726 33.4% 
(1243) 

66.6% 
(2483) 704 1298 204 4 0 

Of which the following percentage are: 

Male 17.7% 
(659) 

36.2% 
(450) 

8.4% 
(209) 

4.8% 
(704) 

14.6% 
(190) 

10.8% 
(22) 

75% 
(4) N/A 27% 51% 25% 53% 

Female 82.3% 
(3067) 

63.8% 
(793) 

91.6% 
(2274) 

95.2% 
(670) 

85.4% 
(1108) 

89.2% 
(182) 

25% 
(1) N/A 73% 49% 75% 47% 

Disabled 0.3% 
(11) 

0.4% 
(5) 

0.3% 
(6) 

0.2% 
(1) 

0.3% 
(4) 0% 0% N/A 2% 17% 15% 13%* 

BME 2.7% 
(100) 

2.7% 
(34) 

2.7% 
(66) 

2.8% 
(20) 

2.4% 
(31) 

2.9% 
(6) 

0% 
(0) N/A 3% 9% 7% 9% 

16-24 3.9% 
(144) 

5% 
(62) 

3.3% 
(82) 

4.4% 
(31) 

4.9% 
(63) 

0.5% 
(1) 

0% 
(0) N/A 4% 15% 7% 15% 

25-39 33.7% 
(1255) 

47.9% 
(596) 

26.5% 
(659) 

23.6% 
(166) 

22.3% 
(290) 

21.1% 
(43) 

75% 
(3) N/A 30% 34% 32% 35% 

40-55 49.5% 
(1843) 

37.4% 
(465) 

55.5% 
(465) 

56.4% 
(397) 

58.6% 
(760) 

56.9% 
(116) 

25% 
(1) N/A 49% 32% 43% 35% 

56-60 8.9% 
(333) 

100 
(8%) 

9.4% 
(233) 

8% 
(56) 

8.6% 
(112) 

15.2% 
(31) 

0% 
(0) N/A 11% 10% 11% 8% 

60+ 4.0% 
(151) 

1.6% 
(20) 

5.3% 
(131) 

7.7% 
(54) 

5.6% 
(73) 

6.4% 
(13) 

0% 
(0) N/A 6% 8% 7% 7% 

 

* See page 34 for explanations of how figures were worked out. 

P
age 32



 

 24 

Housing and Adult Social Services – Workforce Profile 
 
Headcount - 1173 
Full Time Employee equivalent - 863.38 
08/09 Turnover – 8.2% 
09/10 Estimated Turnover – 5.8% 
 

Total Full 
time 

Part 
time 

Grade 

 

CYC 
employees 

York 
working 
age 
profile* 

Local 
government 
employees 

National 
economy 

1-3 4-6 7-9 10-12 Chief Officer 

Overall 1173 38.9% 
(456) 

61.1% 
(717) 204 597 272 62 5 

Of which the following percentage are: 

Male 20.1% 
(236) 

34.4% 
(157) 

11% 
(79) 

19.1% 
(39) 

12.4% 
(74) 

25.7% 
(70) 

38.7% 
(24) 

40% 
(2) 27% 51% 25% 53% 

Female 79.9% 
(937) 

65.6% 
(299) 

89% 
(638) 

80.9% 
(165) 

87.6% 
(523) 

74.3% 
(202) 

61.3% 
(38) 

60% 
(3) 73% 49% 75% 47% 

Disabled 4.8% 
(56) 

7.4% 
(33) 

3.2% 
(23) 1% (2) 2.5% 

(15) 
2.3% 
(6) 

4.9% 
(3) 0% 2% 17% 15% 13%* 

BME 2.7% 
(32) 

3.5% 
(16) 

2.2% 
(16) 2% (4) 2.2% 

(13) 
4.4% 
(12) 

3.2% 
(2) 0% 3% 9% 7% 9% 

16-24 2.9% 
(34) 

2.6% 
(12) 

3.1% 
(22) 

7.8% 
(16) 

2.5% 
(15) 

0.7% 
(2) 0% 0% 4% 15% 7% 15% 

25-39 22.7% 
(266) 

23.2% 
(106) 

22.3% 
(160) 

18.1% 
(37) 

21.8% 
(130) 

29.4% 
(80) 

19.4% 
(12) 0% 30% 34% 32% 35% 

40-55 50.7% 
(595) 

52.9% 
(241) 

49.4% 
(354) 

48.5% 
(99) 

49.2% 
(294) 

51.1% 
(139) 

61.3% 
(38) 

100% 
(5) 49% 32% 43% 35% 

56-60 14.7% 
(173) 

14.9% 
(68) 

14.6% 
(105) 

15.7% 
(32) 

14.9% 
(89) 

13.6% 
(37) 

17.7% 
(11) 0% 11% 10% 11% 8% 

60+ 9% 
(105) 

6.4% 
(29)  

10.6% 
(76) 

9.8% 
(20) 

11.6% 
(69) 

5.1% 
(14) 

1.6% 
(1) 0% 6% 8% 7% 7% 

 
* See  page 34 for explanations of how figures were worked out. 

P
age 33



 

 25 

About the data 
 
The workforce data is based on information on our employee systems as of 1 November 2009.  Casual staff are excluded. 
 
For the graded breakdown, job grades not based on the new grading system are not included, so if the numbers do not add up to the total 
number of employees that is why. 
 
Percentages of disabled and BME are out of those which specified.  Only a small number did not specific their ethnicity or whether they were 
disabled, but they have been discounted from the percentages. 
 
York’s working age profile is based on the 2006 estimates from the Office for National Statistics.  This data is based on the 2001 census.  For 
disability and ethnicity, the figure is based on the overall population; age and gender are based on those aged between 16 and 64.  As many 
16-24 year olds are still in full time education, the percentage given is calculated by multiplying the number of 16-19 and 20-24 year olds in 
York by the percentage of each of those age ranges who are economically active.  This includes working students. 
 
The profile of Local Government employees and the national economy are 2009 figures taken from the ‘Local Government Workforce 
Demographic Profile’, published by the Local Government Association and Local Government Employees in September 2009.  It is worth 
noting that national economy percentages are based only on those who are working, so for the overall UK population, certain percentages are 
different (e.g. 19% of the overall population are disabled where as they represent 13% of the working population). 
 
Cells highlighted in yellow indicate where our workforce is least representative of the community of York.  This indicates that there may be 
barriers to employment which we are not addressing in these areas.   
 
There are further areas where certain groups of people are under-represented at higher grades; these trends have been highlighted in a lighter 
yellow only for the overall workforce breakdown but they are also present in the directorate breakdowns, which should be identified and 
addressed by Directorate Management Teams. 

P
age 34



 

 26 

Appendix 2: Current Initiatives 
Supporting Workforce Planning 
 
Fairness and Inclusion - 
We are committed to being 
a fair employer with a 
diverse workforce, as 
outlined in our Fairness 
and Inclusion strategy.  As 
part of this, we assess the 
equalities impact of all our 
major and new 
employment policies.  Our 
Staff Equalities Reference 
Group, which represents 
the 6 equality strands and 
working carers, will also be 
looking at these and 
providing input into other 
ways to encourage a 
workforce reflective of 
York’s communities.  
 
The Effective Manager 
Programme - a framework 
of practical support to help 
managers develop the 
skills, knowledge and 
behaviours required to 
successfully deliver the 
Business Model.  Fronted 
by the Effective Manager: 
Effective Organisation 
workshop focussing on the 
manager’s role in building 
the Effective Organisation 
vision in the Corporate 
Strategy. 
 
The Managing for 
Results & Leading for 
Results programmes – 
over 200 managers have 
taken part in these 7 day 
modular management and 
leadership development 
programmes aligned to the 
Institute for Leadership 
and Management (ILM) 
standards. 

Leadership And 
Management Standards 
(LAMS) and LAMS360 - 
The Leadership & 
Management Standards 
are a practical tool to 
provide guidance about 
how we are expected go 
about our work, and what 
behaviours others can 
expect from us. They are 
relevant to all posts and 
roles. The 12 Standards 
were developed in-house 
and are structured against 
the council’s aims and 
Organisational 
Effectiveness priorities. 
They are used in PDRs to 
define objectives and 
identify individual 
development needs. 
 
Skills Pledge – CYC has 
signed the Skills Pledge, 
demonstrating its 
commitment to supporting 
its staff to gain basic skills 
and qualifications to 
benefit themselves and 
their work. This includes 
Train to Gain (T2G) and 
Skills for Life (SfL) 
 
Apprenticeships – as 
part of the Skills Pledge 
commitment the Council 
offers apprenticeship 
opportunities to both staff 
and young people in the 
city not in employment, 
education or training, and 
those leaving care. 
 

Range of in-house 
training opportunities  - 
an annual programme of 
short courses open to all 
staff supports the council’s 
values of delivering what 
our customers want, 
providing strong 
leadership, supporting and 
developing people and 
encouraging improvement 
in everything we do.  This 
is further supported by a 
wide range of job-specific 
training opportunities 
provided in directorates. 
 
Out of Hours scheme – 
encourages a return to 
learning by providing 
monetary support to staff 
below Grade 6 to pursue 
adult education courses 
out of work time, in any 
subject. 
 
Mentoring –  
The council was a 
founding member of the 
Yorkshire Accord 
Mentoring Programme 
which was Highly 
Commended at the 
National Training Awards 
in 2007.  This cross-
organisational partnership 
with other public bodies in 
the region has offered 
mentoring opportunities to 
over 100 CYC staff at first-
line manager level and 
above. 

Page 35



 

 27 

The in-house mentoring 
scheme, based on the 
Yorkshire Accord model, 
offers staff at any level the 
opportunity to train to be a 
mentor, or have a mentor, 
in a different part of CYC.   
 
Excellence in Everything 
– Within our 
Neighbourhood Services 
directorate, we have 
improvement teams made 
up of staff from all levels 
looking at various cross-
cutting themes.   
 
Performance & 
Development Reviews – 
All staff have an annual 
appraisal to review their 
job, set objectives and 
discuss how development 
needs will be met. 

E-recruitment  - CYC is 
modernising the way it 
carries out both internal 
and external recruitment 
using e-recruitment, which 
enables all recruitment to 
be done on-line, and 
provides a single focused 
site for vacancy 
advertising. Using this 
solution means we can 
reduce time to hire, and 
postage and advertising 
costs. 
 
National Graduate 
Development 
Programme - CYC takes 
part in the IDeA’s 
successful NGDP and 
currently has national 
management trainees 
placed in three 
directorates offering the 
trainees structured 
placements  in customer-
facing, corporate and 
support functions. 
 
Internal recruitment 
agency – the Council has 
reduced spend on 
recruitment by over 
£400,000 in 08/09 by 
operating an in-house 
recruitment pool to 
speedily place suitable 
candidates in vacant jobs, 
and this is an important 
part of the Resourcing 
Strategy. 
 
Flexible Working - We 
enable flexible working 
through compressed 
hours, job sharing, working 
from home and mobile 
technology.  We are also 
currently redeveloping our 
work/life balance 
provisions.   
 

Staff benefits – There is a 
range of staff benefits 
including staff discounts, a 
staff lottery, free health 
checks, help in stopping 
smoking, occupational 
health provision and 
provision of counseling for 
those suffering from 
stress. 
 
Staff feedback 
mechanisms –  As well as 
the staff survey, the More 
for York programme will 
develop a staff suggestion 
scheme and staff are 
encouraged to provide 
their views and suggest 
improvements to the way 
we work through a direct 
email address to the Chief 
Executive. 
 
Absence Management - 
We have robust absence 
management processes in 
place which have helped 
to reduce sickness 
absence by over 25% in 
the past 3 years

Page 36



 

 28

Appendix 3: Workforce Planning Best 
Practice 
 
Local authorities will be 
assessed through the Use 
of Resources Assessment, 
and to a lesser extent the 
Comprehensive Area 
Assessment, on how well 
they plan their workforce. 
These assessments, and a 
number of other sources 
including awards criteria, 
provide a useful framework 
of best practice in 
workforce planning. 
 
We have reviewed various 
assessment regimes and 
other workforce planning 
approaches to highlight the 
key workforce planning 
‘outcomes’/best practice 
that each seeks to 
achieve: 
 

The sources that were 
used were: 
• Audit Commission 

guidance regarding 
workforce planning 

• Use of Resources 
Assessment Key Line 
of Enquiry 3.3 

• Improvement & 
Development Agency 
(IDeA) Local 
Government Equalities 
Framework 

• CAA guidance 
• Investors in People 

Framework 
• Customer Service 

Excellence Framework 
• IDeA & LGE Pay and 

Workforce Strategy 
• CYC’s ‘More for York’ 

transformation project 
• CYC’s YorOK 

Children’s Trust 
Workforce Plan 

• Public Duties 
 

 

The following pages 
outline these best practice 
outcomes, with reference 
to which sources informed 
each outcome.  The 
outcomes have been 
categorised under the four 
headings set out in our 
2009 – 2012 Corporate 
strategy under ‘An 
Effective Organisation’.  
These are: 
• A Modern Council 
• High Standards in All 
We Do 

• A Great Place to Work 
• Living up to our 
Values 
 

Page 37



 

 36

 
 Workforce Plan ‘Outcomes’ 
A Modern Council 

A
C
 

 U
O
R
 

 E
F
 

 C
A
A
 

 IiP
 

 E
iE
 

 W
S
 

 Y
O
K
 

 M
fY
 

 C
S
E
 

 P
D
 

1. We understand the profile, needs, motivations and preferences of our current employees and 
our labour market.  We use this information to plan our workforce and act on adverse trends. 

                     

                       

 a) We have reliable and fit-for-purpose information about: 
• Numbers and equality profile of employees and job applicants 
• Current employees’ needs, motivations and preferences 
• Sickness absence  
• Staff turnover 
• Our local, regional and national labour market’s characteristics, needs and preferences 
• Demand for services 

                     

                       

 b) This data is monitored, analysed and benchmarked internally and externally to identify barriers 
to employment, to plan our workforce and to act on adverse trends. 

                     

                       

2. We anticipate future workforce opportunities and challenges, and plan accordingly.                      
                       

 a) We use a range of resources and plan certain scenarios to build up a complete picture of 
current and future needs, labour market developments and staffing costs. 

                     

                       

 b) We regularly evaluate the strategies and processes that affect our workforce.                      
                       

 c) Our workforce is adaptable and able to change according to future needs.                      
                       

3. We work collaboratively with other organisations to identify future workforce requirements, 
respond to staff shortages and deliver cost-effective, joined-up services. 

                     

 
 
 
 
Key: AC = Audit Commission Guidance, UOR = Use of Resources Assessment KLOE 3.3, EF = Local Government Equalities Framework, CAA = 
Comprehensive Area Assessment, IiP = Investors in People Framework, WS = IDeA & LGE Pay and Workforce Strategy, YOK = YorOK Workforce 
Strategy, MfY = More for York, CSE = Customer Service Excellence Framework, PD = Public Duties

P
age 38



 

 37

 
 Draft Workforce Development Plan Outcomes 
High Standards in All We Do 

A
C
 

 U
O
R
 

 E
F
 

 C
A
A
 

 IiP
 

 E
iE
 

 W
S
 

 Y
O
K
 

 M
fY
 

 C
S
E
 

 P
D
 

4. We have a talented and well-trained workforce which is used effectively to deliver excellent 
services. 

                     

                       

 a) There is a strong culture of learning, collaboration and improvement where everyone is 
encouraged to contribute ideas to improve their own and other people’s performance. 

                     

                       

 b) There are a range of innovative, accessible and flexible ways of developing people, taking 
into account people’s different learning styles, which enable them to achieve their full 
potential for mutual benefit.  

                     

                       

 c) Development opportunities are based on identified organisational and personal needs.                      
                       

 d) There are effective performance management arrangements which support management in 
delivering services that are fit for purpose, with examples of action taken to resolve poor 
performance of teams or individuals. 

                     

                       

5. We recruit the best possible people for the jobs we need.                      
                       

 a) We successfully promote a positive image of working for the Council and the roles within it to 
the people we want to attract. 

                     

                       

 b) We use a range of innovative opportunities to attract new employees, especially groups we 
know are ‘hard-to-reach’ or disadvantaged. 

                     

                       

 c) Recruitment and selection is fair, efficient, effective and accessible to all.                      
                       

 d) There is a healthy turnover of staff.                      
                       

6. The way we recruit, retain and develop our employees is targeted to the areas of highest risk 
to ensure skills gaps are minimised. 

                     

                       

7. Our workforce represents excellent value for money.                      
                       

 a) Expenditure for training, development and recruiting is linked to LSP, corporate and service 
plan objectives, and identified areas of risk. 

                     

                       

 b) The use of agency staff is monitored to ensure cost-effectiveness.                      

P
age 39



 

 38

 Draft Workforce Development Plan Outcomes 
A Great Place to Work 

A
C
 

 U
O
R
 

 E
F
 

 C
A
A
 

 IiP
 

 E
iE
 

 W
S
 

 Y
O
K
 

 M
fY
 

 C
S
E
 

 P
D
 

8. Our employees are productive and happy.                      
                       

 a) There are high satisfaction levels across all groups in the workforce.                      
                       

 b) There are a range of health, safety and well-being initiatives which are optimising productivity, 
attendance rates and work-life balance. 

                     

                       

 c) Employees are supported through key life events (parenthood, carer responsibilities, pre- or 
semi-retirement) and their personal choice regarding flexible working is respected. 

                     

                       

 d) We recognise and reward teams and individuals according to what motivates them.                      
                       

 e) Our employees are paid fairly.                      
 

 Living up to our Values                      

9. Our current workforce, and the way we recruit, retain and develop our staff, is tailored to 
achieve the Council’s strategic vision, objectives and priorities. 

                     

                       

 a) Services are delivered by those best placed to deliver them according to our customers’ 
needs. 

                     

                       

 b) We monitor and evaluate how our approach to recruiting, retaining and developing our staff 
has improved the Council’s performance. 

                     

                       

10. Workforce planning is regarded as important to the whole organisation – It is driven by 
Directors and Members and embedded in service and financial planning. 

                     

                       

11. We have innovative processes and an inclusive culture to ensure the profile of our employees 
and job applicants broadly reflect York’s community across all career grades. 

                     

                       

12. We contribute to developing the skills of the city, promoting local government as a good 
employer and addressing national skills shortages. 

                     

 

P
age 40



Annex A1 

Workforce Planning Strategic 
Objectives 2010 - 2012 

 
 
Taking into account the current context of City of York Council and the key drivers for 
change, the following strategic workforce objectives have been identified for the period 
2010- 2012.  The detailed action plan which follows outlines the specific actions to 
support these objectives. 
 
Objective One:  Transformation and culture change 
 
Support staff through the More for York transformation programme with timely and open 
communications, a programme of skills development to build leadership and change- 
management capacity, support for all staff and elected members to embrace change 
and a suite of ‘good employer’ support to all. 
 
1a. Engage with staff through the ‘More for York’ transformational change programme 
with timely, accurate and open communications. 
 
1b. Support and develop managers to lead change and transformation. 
 
1c. Support and develop elected members to lead change and transformation. 
 
1d. Develop a suite of ‘good employer’ support for all staff affected by the More for York 
programme or budget cuts. 
 
1e. Work towards a more ambitious, inclusive, focussed and collaborative organisational 
culture. 
 
Objective Two:  Efficiency 
 
Develop a culture of efficiency and effectiveness in response to tight budgetary 
pressures and the need to deliver more with less. 
 
2a. Control staffing costs through a robust resourcing strategy. 
 
2b. Support and develop managers to manage and control tight budgets. 
 
2c. Support and develop all staff to work in the most efficient and effective ways and 
seek improved ways of delivering services.  
 
2d.  Ensure all HR procedures and functions are as efficient and effective as possible. 
 

Page 41



Annex A1 

Objective Three:  Customers 
 
Help shape a more customer-centric culture by developing the skills of staff to 
deliver timely, efficient and excellent services configured around the needs 
and choices in customers’ lives. Develop elected members as community 
leaders.  Respond to the increased demand from customers for more 
engagement and consultation with service providers. 
 
3a. Become a more customer-focussed organisation with an established 
single customer services structure. 
 
3b. Review Members ‘Portal’. 
 
3c. Develop and implement customer service standards and behaviours 
across the council. 
 
3d.  Develop staff’s skills in engaging and consulting with customers, 
stakeholders and partners. 
 
3e.  Work in partnership with other organisations to deliver joined up and 
effective customer services (see 5a.) 
 
Objective 4:  Diversity 
 
Help build an inclusive  culture in which all are treated with dignity and respect 
as described in the Fairness & Inclusion Strategy.  
 
4a. Remove barriers to enable our employment opportunities to be accessible 
to all. 
 
4b. Increase the number of disabled people and BME people at all levels in 
CYC, and female Chief Officers. 
 
4c. Increase the number of young people (under 25) working for the council. 
 
4d. Ensure our organisational culture and practices are fair and inclusive and 
support the retention of a diverse workforce. 
 
4e. Develop the skills of staff to better understand diversity issues 
 
Objective 5:  Partnerships 
 
5a. Develop the skills of staff and elected members to work with public sector 
partners, private sector partners and voluntary & community sector/3rd sector 
partners, across traditional boundaries to deliver customer focussed services. 
 
5b. Work collaboratively with partners to identify future workforce 
requirements and respond to changing patterns of service delivery. 
 

Page 42



Annex A2 

Workforce Plan 2010 – 2012: Action Plan 
 

Objective 1.  Transformation and Culture Change 
 
Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
1A.  Engage with staff 
through the ‘More for 
York’ transformational 
change programme 
with timely, accurate 
and open 
communications. 

1A.1  Deliver the More for York 
Communications Strategy. 
 
 
 
1A. 2  Monitor staff satisfaction 
and morale throughout the 
More for York programme. 
 
 
 
1A. 3  Monitor and evaluate the 
impact of changes on staff 
including staff satisfaction with 
how well  senior managers 
show commitment to engaging 
staff in the process of change 
and minimising the impact of 
change by being sensitive to 
the organisational culture. 
 

By Oct 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Director of Adults, 
Children & 
Education 
 
 
M4Y Board 
 
 
 
 
 
M4Y Board 

More for York 
Communications Strategy 
successfully delivered. 
 
 
Staff satisfaction and 
morale monitored 
throughout the More for 
York programme and 
maintained at high levels. 
 
Staff feel engaged in the 
process of change and 
consider senior managers 
to act  with sensitivity to 
minimise the impact of 
change on staff. 
 

1B.  Support and 
develop all managers 
to lead change and 
transformation. 

1B.1  Deliver the ‘Effective 
Manager Programme’. 
 
 

Begins June 
2010 
 
 

Head of HR & OD 
 
 
 

All managers capable of 
effectively leading change 
and transformation. 
 

P
age 43



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1B.2  Develop the LAMS 360 to 
include transformational 
change competencies and 
diversity competencies. 
 
1B.3  All senior managers to 
complete the LAMS 360 and 
attend a Leadership workshop 
resulting in personal 
development plans which 
aggregate into a corporate 
managers’ development plan 
 
 
 
1B.4.  Align management 
development investment to the 
corporate managers’ 
development plan. 
 
 
1B. 5.  Seek opportunities to 
progress shared leadership 
development across public 
agencies in the city through 
Higher York. 

By April 2010 
 
 
 
Began April 
2010 
Complete by 
Sept 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By April 2011 
 
 
 
 
By Oct 2010 

Head of HR & OD 
 
 
 
 
All senior 
managers and 
Head of HR & OD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AD Corporate 
Finance 
 
 
 
 
Head of HR & OD 

LAMS updated. 
 
 
 
 
All senior managers have 
completed the LAMS 360 
resulting in a personal 
development plan. 
 
A corporate mangers’ 
development plan shapes 
management 
development activity. 
 
Spend on management 
development is aligned to 
need as identified in a 
corporate managers’ 
development plan. 

1C.  Support and 
develop elected 
members to lead 
change and 
transformation. 

1C.1  Deliver change 
leadership training to elected 
members. 
 
 

By April 2011 
 
 
 
By April 2011 

Democratic 
Services  
 
 
 

Elected Members have 
highly developed skills in 
leading change and 
transformation. 
 

P
age 44



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
1C. 2  Attain the IDeA Member 
Development Charter status 
 
1C. 3  Deliver joint 
development activities for 
officers and members. 
 
 

 
Ongoing 

Democratic 
Services 
 
Democratic 
Services 

IDeA Member Charter 
attained. 
 
Members and officers 
regularly attend 
development activities 
together. 

1D. Develop a suite of 
‘good employer’ 
support for all staff 
affected by the More 
for York programme 
or budget cuts. 

1D.1 Develop a framework to 
ensure all newly formed teams 
are quickly able to be functional 
and effective with clear 
objectives and good 
communications. 
 
 1D.2  Minimise redundancies 
through a vacancy freeze at 
grade 10 and higher and 
maximise redeployment 
opportunities. 
 
1D.3  Provide coaching and 
careers advice to those who 
are to be outplaced. (cross 
reference with Action 4C.4) 
 
1D.4  Develop a package of  
flexible working options (cross 
reference with 4A. 8 and 4C. 6) 
 
 

By July 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
By April 2011 

Head of HR & OD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of HR & OD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of HR & OD 
 
 
Head of HR & OD 

All newly formed teams 
use a team development 
framework to quickly 
establish good team 
working. 
 
 
Redundancies kept to 
absolute minimum. 
 
 
 
 
 
Those outplaced are 
offered coaching and 
careers advice. 
 
Flexible working options 
are available to all. 

P
age 45



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
1E. Work towards a 
more ambitious, 
inclusive, focussed 
and collaborative 
organisational culture. 

1E.1  Ensure all staff have an 
effective annual PDR resulting 
in a personal development 
plan. 
 
1E.2  PDR objectives to clearly 
link to service plan objectives. 
 
 
1E.3  Build diversity objectives 
into all PDRs 
(cross reference with 4D. 5) 
  
 
 
1E.4  Develop cross-directorate 
work experience / job 
shadowing / secondments/ joint 
learning opportunities for all inc  
senior staff. 
 
 
 
1E.5  Develop a range of 
activities to build CYC as ‘a 
great place to work’ inc 
ensuring all are aware of the 
current staff benefits. 
 
1E. 6  Developing a staff 
recognition scheme. 

April 2010 
 
 
 
 
April 2010 
 
 
 
By July 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
By Dec 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By Dec 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
By April 2011 
 

All managers and 
Head of HR & OD 
 
 
 
All managers 
 
 
 
All managers 
 
 
 
 
 
All managers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of HR & OD 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of HR & OD 
 

All staff have an effective 
annual PDR which results 
in a personal 
development plan. 
 
All staff understand how 
their PDR links to their 
service plan. 
 
All staff have diversity 
objectives in their PDR 
helping to build an 
inclusive organisational 
culture. 
 
Staff consider the council 
to be ‘a great place to 
work’, have high job 
satisfaction and  describe 
a culture of inclusivity and 
collaboration across 
directorates. 
 
The council is externally 
recognised as an 
ambitious, inclusive, 
focussed and 
collaborative organisation. 
 
 
 

P
age 46



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
1E. 7  Track staff job 
satisfaction through Staff 
Survey feedback. 
 
1E. 8  Ensure all the council’s 
employment policies undergo 
Equality Impact Assessment. 
 
1E. 9  Attain Investors in 
People accreditation. 

By April 2011 
 
 
By Sept 2010 
 
 
 
By April 2012 
 
 
 
 

CMT 
 
 
Head of HR & OD 
 
 
 
CMT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Objective 2. Efficiency 

 

Commitment Action  Lead Outcomes 
2A.  Control 
staffing costs 
through a robust 
resourcing 
strategy. 
 

2A. 1  Produce, 
implement and 
monitor an 
organisational 
resourcing strategy 
including different 
contractual 
arrangements and 
retraining/multiskilling 
mechanisms. 
 
2A.  2  Managers use 
quality workforce 
data on a regular 
basis to inform 
decision making and 

Already 
begun 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Already 
begun  
 
 
 

Head of HR & OD and all managers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of HR & OD and all managers 
 
 
 
 

Staffing costs are well 
controlled by all managers 
making good use of 
workforce data, 
implementing a 
resourcing strategy and 
utilising cross-council and 
partnership workforce 
pools. 

P
age 47



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
control staffing costs. 
 
2A. 3  Develop cross 
CYC workforce pools 
and partnership 
resourcing. 

By Sept 
2010 

Head of HR & OD and all managers 
 

2B.  Support 
and develop 
managers to 
manage and 
control tight 
staffing budgets. 

2B. 1  Include 
mandatory budgetary 
training as part of the 
Effective Manager 
Programme. 
 
 

From June 
2010 

AD Customer & Business Support 
Services - Finance 

Managers have the skills 
to manage and control 
tight staffing budgets. 

2C.  Support 
and develop all 
staff to work in 
the most 
efficient and 
effective ways 
and seek 
improved ways 
of delivering 
services.  
 

2C.  1  PDRs to 
discuss suggestions 
for improved 
efficiency. 
 
2C.  2. Continue the 
improvement in 
attendance levels. 
 
2C.  3.  Encourage 
all staff to make 
efficiency 
suggestions through 
a staff suggestion 
scheme.  
 

From April 
2010 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
By Sept 
2010 

All managers 
 
 
 
 
All managers 
 
 
 
All managers 

Staff discuss suggestions 
for improved efficiency at 
their PDR and make use 
of the staff suggestion 
scheme. 

2D. Ensure HR 
processes and 

2D.  4.  Deliver the 
HR Transformation 

Ongoing Head of HR & OD The HR Transformation 
Blueprint is successfully 

P
age 48



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
functions are as 
efficient and 
effective as 
possible. 
 

More for York 
Blueprint. 
 
 
 

delivered. 

 
Objective 3.  Customers 

 

Commitment Action Timescale Lead Outcomes 
3A.  Become a 
more customer-
focused 
organisation 
with an 
established 
single customer 
services 
structure. 

3A. 1  Develop and 
implement customer 
service standards for 
all staff. 
 
 
 
3A. 2  Implement, 
monitor and evaluate 
the actions in the 
Joint Customer and 
Transactional 
Services Project 
Plan. 
 
3A. 3  Attain 
Customer Service 
Excellence in 
‘Customer Services’. 

All customer 
services 
staff by Dec 
2010. For all 
staff by late 
2012 
 
 
Already 
started with 
rolling 
programme 
to late 2012 
 
Already 
started with 
rolling 
programme 
to late 2012 
 
 
 
 

AD of Customer Service & 
Governance  
     
 
 
 
Joint Customer & Transactional 
Services Project 
 
 
 
 
Joint Customer & Transactional 
Services Project 

The council is a customer-
focused organisation with 
an established single 
customer services 
structure. P

age 49



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
3B.  Review 
Members ‘Portal’ 

3B. 1  Design and 
deliver improvements 
to existing Members 
Portal linked to the 
Member 
Development 
programme on being 
community leaders. 
 

July 2010 
 

AD of Customer Service & 
Governance  
    & 
Joint Customer & Transactional 
Services Project 

Initial delivery will be an 
improved Member service 
prior to the development 
of an automated portal. 
Members have effective 
and efficient access to log 
jobs, complaints, 
comments 

3C.  Develop 
and implement 
customer 
service 
standards and 
behaviours 
across the 
council. 

3C. 1  Ensure 
customer service 
objectives are agreed 
in all PDRs and how 
to develop customer 
service skills is 
identified in PDPs 
where necessary. 
 
3C. 2  Ensure 
customer service 
competencies, as 
expressed in the 
LAMS,  and 
customer service 
behaviours are in all 
job descriptions. 
 
3C. 3  Build the skills, 
capacity and 
attitudes to put 
customers first 

Already 
started with 
rolling 
programme 
to late 2012 
 
 
 
 
Already 
started with 
rolling 
programme 
to late 2012 
 
 
 
 
Already 
started with 
rolling 
programme 

AD of Customer Service & 
Governance and all managers 
 
All managers 
 
 
 
 
 
AD of Customer Service & 
Governance and Head of HR & OD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Joint Customer & Transactional 
Services Project 
 
 

Customer service 
standards and behaviours 
are embedded across the 
council and included in 
PDR objectives, job 
descriptions and 
development 
opportunities. 

P
age 50



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
throughout the 
organisation. 
 
3C. 4  Deliver 
development 
opportunities to build 
customer focus skills. 
 

to late 2012 
 
Already 
started with 
rolling 
programme 
to late 2012 

 
 
Joint Customer & Transactional 
Services Project 

3D. Develop 
staff’s skills of 
engaging and 
consulting with 
customers, 
stakeholders 
and partners. 

3D. 1  Ensure staff 
are competent at 
using the 
Engagement 
Strategy Toolkit to 
deliver effective 
engagement and 
consultation activities 
 
 
3D. 2  Include 
mandatory customer 
skills training as part 
of the Effective 
Manager 
Programme. 
 
 

Already 
started with 
rolling 
programme 
to late 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
From June 
2010 

AD of Customer Service & 
Governance  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AD of Customer Service & 
Governance 

Staff are competent in 
engaging and consulting 
with customers, 
stakeholders and 
partners. 

3E. Work in 
partnership with 
other 
organisations to 
deliver joined up 

3E.1  Review current 
partnerships and 
explore the 
partnership 
opportunities on both 

Already 
started with 
rolling 
programme 
to late 2012 

AD of Customer Service & 
Governance 
 
 
 

The council increasingly 
works in effective 
partnerships with other 
organisations to deliver 
joined up customer 

P
age 51



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
and effective 
customer 
services. (See 
5A) 

a process and 
technical level. 
 
 
3E. 2  Develop new 
delivery channels 
with private, public 
and 3rd sector 
agencies. 
 
 
3E. 3 Establish 
shared service 
arrangements with 
adjacent authorites. 
 

 
 
 
 
Already 
started with 
rolling 
programme 
to late 2012 
 
Already 
started with 
rolling 
programme 
to late 2012 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Joint Customer & Transactional 
Services Project 
 
 
 
 
Joint Customer & Transactional 
Services Project 

services. 

Objective 4.  Diversity  
Commitment Action Timescale Lead Outcomes 
4A. Remove 
barriers to 
enable our 
employment 
opportunities to 
be accessible to 
all. 
And 
 
 

4.A.1  Further 
collaboration with 
community groups to 
understand why 
there are a low 
numbers of disabled 
people, BME people 
and under 25s 
working for the 
council. 

By Sept 
2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Equalities Leadership Group 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The council meets the the 
‘achieving authority’ 
criteria in the IdeA’s 
Equality Framework. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 52



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
4B.  Increase 
the number of 
disabled people 
and BME people 
at all levels in 
CYC, and 
female Chief 
Officers. 
 

4.A.2  Work with 
disability groups in 
York to communicate 
what the Council 
does to encourage 
and enable disabled 
people to work for us 
and how they can 
find out about and 
apply for CYC jobs. 
 
4.A.3 Work with BME 
groups in York to 
communicate what 
the Council does to 
encourage and 
enable BME people 
to work for us and 
how they can find out 
about and apply for 
CYC jobs.  
 
4.A.4  Through taking 
on best practice and 
consulting with staff 
and customers, 
ensure the new 
Council HQ has 
excellent accessibility 
to all.  
 

By Sept 
2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By Sept 
2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Equalities Leadership Group 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Equalities Leadership Group 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Accommodation Project Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The council employs more 
disabled people. 
 
The council employs more 
BME people. 
 
The council employs more 
women at Chief Officer 
level. 
 
 
Disbaled people and BME 
people are fully enabled 
to apply for jobs in the 
council and have the 
option of utilising  a 
package of flexible 
working options to enable 
them to  work for us. 
 
 
 
Work placements are 
offered to people with 
learning disabilities, often 
through the process of 
‘job carving’. 
 
Young people leaving 
CYC care have a 
guaranteed job interview 

P
age 53



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
4.A.5  Encourage 
wider participation in 
work placements and 
employment for 
those with learning 
disabilities through 
Future Prospects. 
 
4.A.6  Ensure 
equality needs are 
built in to job design 
and job descriptions 
and reasonable 
adjustments consider 
‘job carving’. 
 
4.A 7.  Implement 
and embed a 
guaranteed interview 
scheme for those 
leaving local 
authority care 
(Looked After 
Children -  LAC) 
 
4A. 8  Develop a 
package of  flexible 
working options 
(cross reference with 
action 1D. 4 and 
4C.6) 

By Oct 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By April 
2011 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By Dec 
2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 2011 
 
 
 
 
 

Head of HR & OD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All managers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Director of Adults, Children & 
Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of HR & OD 
 
 
 
 
 

scheme. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 54



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
4A. 9 Investigate why 
CYC employs few 
women at Chief 
Officer level and 
propose actions to 
redress. 
 
4A. 10  The council 
meets the ‘achieving 
authority’ criteria in 
the IdeA’s Equality 
Framework. 
 

April 2011 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Equalities Leadership Group 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CMT 

4C. Increase the 
number of 
young people 
(under 25) 
working for the 
council. 

4C.1  Work with the 
local universities, 
colleges and schools 
to encourage young 
people to apply for 
CYC jobs, and 
placements  
 
4C.2  Develop a 
programme to offer 3 
– 6 month internships 
for local graduates 
and young 
unemployed. 
 
4C.3  Increase the 
number of young 
apprentices and 

By Dec 
2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By Dec 
2010 
 
 
 
 
 
By Dec 
2010 
 

Head of HR & OD for development. 
 
All managers for implement 
-ation. 

The number of under 25 
year olds employed by the 
council increases and 
they have the option of 
utilising  a package of 
flexible working options to 
enable them to  work for 
us. 
 

P
age 55



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
apprentices from 
under-represented 
groups in all areas of 
the council. 
 
4C.4  Provide an 
internal careers 
advice service for 
young employees 
(cross reference with 
Action 1D.3) 
 
4C.5  Develop in-
house graduate 
talent by offering 
structured work 
experience 
opportunities across 
different services. 
 
4C.6  Develop a 
package of flexible 
working options 
(cross reference with 
actions 1D 4 and 4A 
8) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
By July 
2011 
 
 
 
 
 
By April 
2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By April 
2010 
 

4D. Ensure our 
organisational 
culture and 

4D.1  Equality Impact 
Assessment of all HR 
policies and 

By July 
2010 
 

Head of HR & OD 
 
 

The council’s 
organisational culture and 
practices are fair and 

P
age 56



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
practices are fair 
and inclusive 
and support the 
retention of a 
diverse 
workforce. 
 

practices, and other 
pieces of work 
affecting staff, in 
consultation with the 
Staff Equalities 
Reference Group. 
 
4D.2  Equality Impact 
Assessment of the 
More for York 
Programme and all 
‘blueprints’  in 
consultation with the 
Staff Equalities 
Reference Group 
 
 
 
4D.3  Implement and 
monitor the actions of 
the council’s 
Fairness and 
Inclusion Strategy. 
 
4D.4  Support the 
further development 
and embedding of 
the Staff Equalities 
Reference Group. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 

More for York Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CMT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CMT 
 
 
 
 
 
Equalities Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 

inclusive and support the 
retention of a diverse 
workforce resulting in 
more disabled people, 
young people and BME 
people working for us and 
more women in Chief 
Officer posts. 
 

P
age 57



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
4D.5  Build diversity 
objectives into all 
PDRs. (cross 
reference with 1E 3) 

By July 
2010 
 
 
 

All managers 
 

4E.  Develop the 
skills of staff to 
better 
understand 
diversity issues. 

4E.1  Include  
mandatory diversity 
training as part of the 
Effective Manager 
Programme (EMP) 
 
 
4E.2  Refresh to 
Leadership & 
Management 
Standards (LAMS) to 
include diversity. 
 
4E.3  Ensure 
diversity awareness 
is mandatory in the 
induction of all new 
staff. 

From June 
2010 
 
 
 
 
 
By Sept 
2010 
 
 
 
 
By Oct 2010 

Head of HR & OD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of HR & OD 
 
 
 
 
 
Heads of Service 

All council staff have a 
sound understanding of 
diversity issues. 

 
Objective 5.  Partnerships 

 

Commitment Actions Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
5A.  Develop the 
skills of staff and 
elected 
members to 
work with public 

5A.1  Deliver 
development 
opportunities for staff 
and members around 
working in 

Provisionally 
by March 
2011 
 
 

Chief Executive’s Office 
 

Staff and elected 
members have the skills 
to work with partners 
across traditional 
boundaries to deliver 

P
age 58



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
sector partners, 
private sector 
partners and 
voluntary & 
community 
sector/3rd sector 
partners, across 
traditional 
boundaries to 
deliver customer 
focussed 
services. 

partnership including 
the development of 
cross-organisational 
learning opportunities 
such as work 
experience, job 
shadowing, 
mentoring, 
secondments. 
 
5A.2  Develop an 
approach to Total 
Place that will deliver 
services in 
collaboration with key 
partners. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ongoing 

customer focussed 
services. 

5B.  Work 
collaboratively 
with partners to 
identify future 
workforce 
requirements 
and respond to 
changing 
patterns of 
service delivery 
 
 

5B. 1  Develop joint 
learning/training with 
partners to develop 
awareness of each 
other’s 
business/policy 
challenges. 
 
5B. 2  Set up a 
programme of joint 
meetings with senior 
management teams 
from our main 
partner agencies e.g. 

March 2011 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 

Chief Executive’s Office Future workforce needs 
and changing patterns of 
service delivery are 
identified and responded 
to in partnership. 

P
age 59



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
PCT, the Police. 
 
5C. 3  Develop joint 
approach with 
partners to utilize 
customer insight data 
and service design 
principles to facilitate 
future joint workforce 
planning with 
partners. 
 

 
 
Scoping by 
March 2011 

6.  Actions to improve and further embed workforce planning  
6A.  Improve 
and further 
embed 
workforce 
planning into the 
council. 

6A. 1  Strengthen 
links between service 
plans, workforce 
implications and 
PDRs. 
 
6B. 2    Design a 
comprehensive 
toolkit for managers 
to integrate 
workforce planning 
into service planning 
in ‘year 2’ of the 
Workforce Plan (ie 
ready for the 2011 
service plans). 
 
 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
By March 
2011 

 All managers 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of Performance & Business 
Assurance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service plans, workforce 
planning and PDRs are 
linked by common 
recognised themes. 
 
Workforce planning is fully 
integrated with service 
planning. 

P
age 60



Annex A2 

Commitment Action Timescale Implementation Outcomes 
6C. 3 Provide 
managers who are 
responsible for 
service planning a 
comprehensive suite 
of workforce data for 
their service area, as 
well as an overview 
of the organisational 
and labour market 
context, to assist in 
2011 service 
planning round. 
 

Head of HR & OD 
 
 

6B.  Review 
council-wide 
learning and 
training 
provision and 
spend to ensure 
it aligns with the 
Workforce Plan 
objectives 

 6B. 1  Incorporate 
review into HR More 
for York Blueprint. 

 Head of HR & OD Staff training needs from 
PDRs are collated at 
organisational level and 
annual corporate spend 
on learning and training is 
aligned to identified 
training need. 

 

P
age 61



P
age 62

T
his page is intentionally left blank



   More for YorkMore for York  

Delivering through PeopleDelivering through People  

HR Transformation 

Workforce PlanWorkforce Plan  

2010 2010 --  20122012    

P
age 63



What is Workforce Planning?What is Workforce Planning?  

•  having the right people with the right skills in the right places 
 at the right time to deliver the right services to our customers
  
•  ensuring our workforce has the skills to deliver what we want 
 it to do now, and planning so that it will be able to deliver what 
 we want it to do in the future. 

HR Transformation 

 we want it to do in the future. 
 
•  using information about our current workforce and considering 
  future trends, workforce planning enables us to identify the 
 future people and skills  we will need, and to work towards 
 this now.   

 

P
age 64



  

  

 

Why do we need a Workforce Plan?Why do we need a Workforce Plan?  

•  2009-12 Corporate Strategy………‘Effective Organisation’ 
 ….defined as being ’modern, with high standards in all we do, 
 living up to our values, and being a great place to work’.   

•        Use of Resources Assessment /  Comprehensive Area 
 Assessment 

HR Transformation 

  Assessment 

•  Clear statement of commitment & priorities to the Workforce  

•  Sets out a framework for us manage and monitor progress 

 

P
age 65



What are the priorities?What are the priorities?  

•  Diversity 
•  Efficiency 
•  Transformation and Culture change 
•  Customers 

HR Transformation 

•  Partnerships 

P
age 66



Diversity 

•   Remove barriers to enable our employment opportunities to 
 be accessible to all. 
  
•  Increase the number of disabled people and BME people at all 
 levels in CYC, and female Chief Officers. 

  
•  Increase the number of young people (under 25) working 

HR Transformation 

•  Increase the number of young people (under 25) working 
 for the Council. Ensure our organisational culture and practices 
 are fair and inclusive and support the retention of a diverse 
 workforce. 
  
•  Develop the skills of staff to better understand diversity 
 issues 

  
 

P
age 67



Diversity continued 

•  Further collaboration with community groups to understand why 
 there are a low numbers of disabled people, BME people and 
 under 25s working for the council. 
  
•   Work with disability groups in York to communicate what the 
 Council does to encourage and enable disabled people to work 
 for us and how they can find out about and apply for CYC jobs. 
  

HR Transformation 

  
•   Work with BME groups in York to communicate what the Council 
 does to encourage and enable BME people to work for us and 
 how they can find out about and apply for CYC jobs.  
  
•  Through taking on best practice and consulting with staff and 
 customers, ensure the new Council HQ has excellent 
 accessibility to all.  

  
  
 

P
age 68



•   Encourage wider participation in work placements and employment 
 for those with learning disabilities through Future Prospects. 
 
•  Ensure equality needs are built in to job design and job descriptions 
  and reasonable adjustments consider ‘job carving’. 
  
•  Implement and embed a guaranteed interview scheme for those 
 leaving local authority care (Looked After Children -  LAC) 
 

Diversity continued 

HR Transformation 

 
•   Develop a package of  flexible working options (cross reference with 
 action 1D. 4 and 4C.6) 
  
•   Investigate why CYC employs few women at Chief Officer level and 
 propose actions to redress. 
 
•     The council meets the ‘achieving authority’ criteria in the IdeA’s 
 Equality Framework. 
 

P
age 69



Embedding Workforce Planning 

•  Service Planning 
•  Management Information 
•  Role of HR and role of Manager 
•  Governance and Steering arrangements to be 
 robust 

HR Transformation 

 robust 
 

 

P
age 70



Role of scrutiny? 

Monitoring Diversity objectives in relation 
to Apprenticeships and Young people 

HR Transformation 

P
age 71



P
age 72

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	4 "City of York Council Apprenticeships and Other Work Based Learning Opportunities" Scrutiny Review - Progress Report
	Annex A
	Annex A1
	Annex A2
	Annex B


